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AMENDED VERIFIED COMPLAINT

Western Holding Group Inc Marine Express Inc and Corporaci6n Ferries del

Caribe Inc collectively Complainants all related companies and through their

undersigned attomeys respectfully state and pray

I Complainants

1 Complainant Westem Holding Group Inc Westem Holding is for

profit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth ofPuerto

Rico incorporated on April 16 2004 Western Holding is the owner of the MV

CARIBBEAN EXPRESS Panama Flag 19292 gross tons which in tum is time

chartered to Marine Express Inc for the transportation of passengers and goods in the

foreign trade between the Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico specifically the Port of

Mayagiiez Because of its Meditenanean mooring system no other port in Puerto Rico

can accommodate the MV CARIBBEAN EXPRESS with without taking exceptional
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measures and at great costs and expenses Westem Holdings address isPO Box 6448

Mayagiiez PR 00681

2 Complainant Marine Express Inc Marine Express is a forprofit

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

incorporated on October 6 1992 Marine Express with an FMC No 011247 is legally

operating as a Vessel Operating Common Carrier VOCC Its primary business is the

common transportation by sea of cazgo for compensation between the Dominican

Republic and Puerto Rico specifically the Port of Mayagiiez Since its inception Marine

Express has operated in the facilities of the Port of Mayagiiez Marine Expresssaddress

isPO Box 6448 Mayagiiez PR00681

3 Complainant Corporacion Ferries del Caribe Ina Ferries del Caribe is

a forprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of

Puerto Rico incorporated on July 30 1997 Its primary business is the sea transportation

of passengers and motoc vehicles for compensation between the Dominican Republic and

Puerto Rico Ferries del Caribe entered into an ocean freight and service ageement with

sister company Marine Express for the transportation of passengers and motor vehicles

on boazd the MN CARIBBEAN EXPRESS Ferries del Caribe has continuously

submitted its Passenger Financial Responsibility Bond with the Federal Maritime

Commission Since its inception Ferries del Caribe has operated in the facilities of the

Port of Mayagiiez Ferries del Caribes address is PO Box 6448 Mayagiiez PR

00681
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II Respondents

4 The Mayagiiez Port Commission Port Commission is a public

corporation of the Municipality ofMayagiiez with the capacity to enter into contracts

and to sue and be sued organized and existing in accordance with Law No 10 of May

19 1959 of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Act 10 As an ann of the Municipality

of Mayagiiez the sovereign immunity protection under the Eleventh Amendment of the

US Constitution does not apply to the Port Commission The Mayor of the

Municipality of Mayagiiez has the power to designate and remove the five

commissioners 23 LPRA 553 The Mayagiiez Port Commission commenced

functions in 2004 and is responsible tocevelop approve manage own operate and

administer all port businesses of the Port of Mayagiiez including its marine terminal

facilities 23LPRA555 In furtherance of Act 10 on Mazch 13 2008 the Mayagiiez

Port Commission published the Handbook and TariffNo 01 Rules Regulations Tariffs

Effective Date 20082011 Tariff No O1 for the Port of Mayagiiez which became

effective two days later on Mazch 15 2008 The Port Commission is a marine terminal

operator that controls andor fumishes wharfage dock wazehouse and other marine

terminal facilities and services at the Port of Mayaguez in connection with common

carriers engaged in US coastwise and foreign commerce The address of the Mayagiiez

Port Commission is 80PR3341 Suite 102 Mayagiiez PR 006825769

5 Holland Group Port Inveshnent Mayagiiez Inc Holland Group is a

forprofit corporation organized and existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of

Puerto Rico incorporated on Apri16 2006 The purpose of its incorporation was to enter

into a longterm lease and developmentaeement of the Port of Mayagiiez with the
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Mayagiiez Port Commission Under the Lease and Development Agreement executed on

May 11 2007 with the Mayagiiez Port Commission Holland Group administers and

operates the Mayagiiez Port Facilities for a term of30 years with an additional 30year

option Section 172 of the Lease and Development Agreement states that both parties

Port Commission and Holland Group must comply with Local and Federal law Holland

Group is a marine terminal operator that controls andor furnishes wharfage dock

warehouse and other marine terminal facilities and services at the Port of Mayaguez in

connection with common carriers engaged in US coastwise and foreign commerce The

address of Holland Group 80 Road 3341 Suite 102 Mayagiiez Puerto Rico 00682

III Jurisdiction

6 This action is brought pursuant to the Shipping Act of 1984 as amended

46 USC 40101 et seg Complainants Ferries del Caribe and Marine Express are

common carriers within the meaning of Section 40102 6 Complainant Westem

Holding is the owner of the vessel in the common carriage of cargo and passengers This

Honorable Commission has jurisdiction over this Complaint because the Port

Commission and Holland Group are marine terminal operators within the meaning of the

Shipping Act 46USC 4010214 and the actions of the Respondents which are the

subject of this Complaint aze violations of the Shipping Act The Complainants

respectfully request from the Federal Maritime Commission FMC repazations for

injuries caused by the Mayagiiez Port Commissionsand the Holland Groups violations

of Sections 41102c and 41106 1 2 and 3 of the Shipping Act of 1984 for their

unreasonable tariffs unjust practices undue prejudice and their unreasonable refusal to

negotiate with respect to the Complainants Complainants also seek from the
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Commission to order the Mayagiiez Port Commission and the Holland Group to cease

and desist from future violations ofthe Shipping Act of 1984

Respondents rates tariffs and practices are irrational discriminatory

confiscatory and are not rationally related to the services andor benefits provided thus

violate the US Constitution including the Tonnage Clause ImportExport Clause the

Fifth and Foucteenth Amendment and the Mayagiiez Port Commissions enabling law

In light of the above and as provided for under 46 USC 41306 Injunctive relief

sought by complainants the Complainants intend to seek declaratory and injunctive

relief from theUS Federal District Court for the District ofPuerto Rico

IV Factual Background

a Complainants operation in the Port of Mayaguez

7 Complainant Marine Express began operating at the terminal facilities of

the Port ofMayagiiez in 1993 subject to the rules and tariffs of the nonparty Puerto Rico

Ports Authority PRPA which was then the owner and operator of the Port of

Mayagiiez

8 Complainant Ferries del Caribe began operating at the terminal facilities

of the Port of Mayagiiez in 1998

9 Until September of 2008 Marine Express and Ferries del Caribe had

occupied 355 cuerdas out ofthe 19 cuerdas of the Mayagiiez Terminal or approximately

186of the available terminal azea

10 In 2003 Westem Holding chartered the MV CARIBBEAN EXPRESS

from previous owners The vessel made the transatlantic crossing under her own power

and navigation from the Mediterranean Sea to the Port ofMayagiiez
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ll Complainant Western Holding purchased the MV CARIBBEAN

EXPRESS for1280000000 in 2004 for the sole purpose of chartering the vessel to its

sister company Marine Express to service the foreign trade between the Dominican

Republic and Puerto Rico from the Port of Mayagiiez Marine Express in turn has an

ocean freight and service agreement with sister company Ferries del Caribe for the

transportation of passengers and motor vehicles The FMC lists Complainants Marine

Express asaVessel Operating Common Carrier Marine Express Vessel Operating

Common Carriers organization number is 011247 FMC and Complainants published

their tariffs electronicallywwwetmratescomissue passenger tickets and bills of lading

as required by the Federal Shipping Act

12 The MV CARIBEAN EXPRESS offers 365 passenger cabins asitdown

style restaurant with seating for 100 a buffet restaurant with seating for 175 a coffee

shop four night clubbars with seating ranging from 60 to 350 people a Beauty Salon

Massage Spa providing a full range ofhair caze styling services a Casino with table

games and 35 slots machines a duty free shop and jewelry shop a cinema a fuily

equipped Gym room aKids Club with a big ball pool and a fully equipped and staffed

infirmary and helicopter evacuation azea The MV CARIBBEAN EXPRESS has a

capacity of 1067 passengers 165 crewmembers forty 45 containers and 50 motor

vehicles including cazs and trucks MVCARIBEAN EXPRESS complies with all

international regulations and treaties applicable to ocean going vessels in commercial

trade including SOLAS MARPOL ISM and ISPS The vessel is a fully classed vessel

that has all the trading certificates including the Intemational LoadLine certificate



Amended Verified Complaint
FMC Docket No OS06 Page 7

13 Complainants transport in the foreign trade between the Dominican

Republic and Puerto Rico up to 169000 passengers 18800 motor vehicles and 13500

22500 20 trailer equivalent unit containers a year on an average of three voyages per

week which amounts to over 160 entries to the Port of Mayagiiez each year and over

2560 entries during Complainant Marine Expresss 16 yeazs of operation On its

ovemight voyage the MN CARIBBEAN EXPRESS travels 160 nautical miles between

Puerto Rico and the Dominican Republic

14 For several years prior to and since 1993 no other common carrier private

carrier or intermediazy has operated on a regular basis at the Mayagiiez Port Terminal

facilities However since the Port Commission took over control of the Port of

Mayagiiez in August 20041ess than 10 cruise ships have used the Port as a stop and have

been fumished matine terminal facilities and services by Respondents as the Ports

marine terminal operators

b The blayagiiez Port Cocnmissionsunreasonable cancellation of the
Terminal Lease Agreement and refusal to negotiate

15 On January 28 2003 PRPA entered into a fiveyear terminal lease

agreement with Complainant Marine Express for the terminal facilities of the Port of

Mayagiiez the Mayaguez Terminal Lease AgreemenY in accordance with PRPAs

Tariffs MI6Rates Fees and Charges for the Use of Public Marine Facilities and Port

Services with a right ofrenewal The monthly rental payment was861191 including

61870 for utilities Under the lease the Complainants occupied a total of355 cuerdas

or approximately 129000 squaze feet of the Port ofMayagiiez As per PRPAs Tariffs

M16this rental payment is subject to ayeazly increase of2
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16 The Mayaguez Terminal Lease Agreement provided the Complainants the

use of exclusive and preferential azeas for cazgo operations as well as for warehousing

office and open spaces for passengers and cazgo operations Marine Express and Ferries

del Caribe essentially work out of the same facilities The office area also provides space

for US Immigration and Customs Officials 111

17 On July 23 2004 PRPA through Covenant AP 045433 Covenant for

the Transfer of the Port of Mayaguez and with the approval of the Commonwealth of

Puerto Rico and the Municipality of Mayaguez transferred the properties facilities

rights and obligations of the Port of Mayagiiez to Respondent Port Commission with the

exception ofthe navigational rights

18 The Covenant for the Transfer of the Port of Mayagiiez required the Port

Commission to honor the terms and conditions of any existing agreement entered into by

the Port Authority which included the Complainants Mayagiiez Terminal Lease

Agreement It also required the application of PRPAs rates and tariffs until the Port

Commission published its own rates and tariffs

19 On August 18 2004 the Respondent Port Commission notified the

Claimants that pursuant to the Covenant of the Transfer of the Port of Mayaguez the

rental under the Mayagiiez Terminal Lease Agreement were now payable to the Port

Commission The Port Commission also gave notice that it would soon analyze and

evaluate the Mayagiiez Terminal Lease Agreement and communicate its determination to

Claimants
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20 On September 2 2004 Claimants Marine Express and Ferries del Caribe

replied to the Port Commission providing information concerning the leased premises

and rent payment

21 Almost 18 months after the fact on January 12 2006 in violation of the

Covenant for the Transfer of the Port of Mayagiiez without due process of law or

foundation on fact and acting under color of law the Port Commission azbitrarily and

without reason notified the canceliation ofthe Mayagiiez Terminal Lease Agreement

22 Regardless of Complainants Marine Express and Feiries del Caribes

timely objections in January through Mazch 2006 the Port Commission confirmed on

March 6 2006 its unreasonable decision to cancel the Mayaguez Terminal Lease

AgreemenL The cancellation came two years prior to the Port Commissions enactment

ofTariffNo 1 in direct breach of the Covenant for the Transfer of the Port of Mayagiiez

23 The Port Commission unreasonably refused to negotiate and unilaterally

determined to allow the Complainants to continue operations at the Mayagiiez Port

Temiinal only on amonthtomonth basis with a5day cancellation clause which caused

great uncertainty to the Complainants business

c The Port Commission and Holland Group refused to negotiate a lease

agreement with the Complainants

24 By letter dated January 29 2007 Complainants complained to the Port

Commission that their requests to negotiate a lease agreement had gone unanswered

They also requested the Port Commission to name a representative to begin negotiations

25 On Mazch 22 2007 Complainants again notified the PoR Commission of

their proposed requirements and conditions for anew lease agreement
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26 On April 13 2007 the Port Commission sent to the Complainants a draft

ofa proposed terminal lease ageement reducing the lease azea from 12888687 square

feet to3000 squaze feet This is a reduction in operational area of more than 97 even

though the rest of the Port facilities remained unoccupied This amounted to a

constructive refusal to negotiate and unjustifiably forcing the Complainants to vacate the

premises

27 By letter dated April 23 2007 Complainants notified to the Mayor of

Mayaguez their objections to the Port Commissions proposed lease agreement in that it

reduced the operational azea to be leased to Complainants by approximately 90 it

increased the water charge by 45 and it was only for five years The Complainants

also objected to the unconscionable condition that if the Port Commissions terms and

conditions were not unilaterally accepted the Complainants would have to leave the

premises in 15 days If not a daily penalty of100000 would be imposed

28 On May 1 2007 the Complainants again voiced their objections and

concems to the Port Commission

29 On May 25 2007 Holland Group notified Complainants of the signing of

the contract with the Port Commission for the administration operation and development

of the Mayagiiez Port Holland Group also requested information from Complainants

regazding their operational needs

30 Compiainants submitted the required information to Holland Group on

May 30 2007

31 Subsequently on June 8 2007 the Port Commission admonished the

Complainants that during the transition period of 90 days from the date of the signing of
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the Lease and Development Agreement between the Port Commission and Holland

Group which was on May 11 2007 the Port Commission would not entertain

negotiations regarding the lease agreement with Complainants It further instructed

Complainants that any future negotiations would have to be conducted with Holland

Group upon taking over in August 2007

32 During the August 9 2007 change of command ceremony between the

Port Commission and Holland Group Holland Group requested from Complainants a

shortterm and longterm plan for terminal space requirement

33 The next day on August 10 2007 the Complainants submitted to Holland

Group and the Port Commission the proposed shortterm and longterm terminal space

plan

34 Subsequently Complainants made several efforts to negotiate a terminal

lease agreement with Holland Cnoup and the Port Commission to no avail In fact

Complainants written communications went unanswered

35 On January 28 2008 the 5yeaz term of the Terminal Lease Agreement

with PRPA expired Because the Port Commission and Holland Group refused to

negotiate a lease agreement Complainants had no other option but to continue to pay rent

on monthly basis as per the PRPA Lease Agreement which in turn was based on

PRPAstariffs for the Port of San Juan

36 After 14 yeazs of successfully negotiating with the Respondents

predecessors PRPA Complainants werenot even able to get negotiations started with the

Port Commission or Holland Group Respondents refusal to negotiate a valid lease

agreement with their only tenant is unreasonable because it does not rationally relate to
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the Portsintended purpose Furtherrnore there is no valid transportation purpose for the

forgoing undue and unreasonable prejudices against Complainants or the Respondents

refusal to deal with Complainant Even if there is a valid transportation purpose the

discriminatory actions of Respondents exceed what is necessary to achieve the purpose

d The Port Commission and Holland Group failed to establish
observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and

practices

37 On March 13 2008 Respondent Holland Group notified the Complainants

that Respondent Mayagiiez Port Commission published the Handbook and Tariff No 01

Rules Regulations Tarifjs Effective Date 20082001 TariffNo O1 for the Port of

Mayaguez which became effective two days later on Mazch 15 2008 In April 2008

Complainants objected to the tariffs as vague unreasonable and discriminatory The

objections went unanswered

i Rule 83and Rate 1675

38 Tariff No Ol Rule 83 Penalty and Rate 1675 Docking Penalty aze

unreasonable unjust and vague Rule 83 provides

83Penalties

Any Vessel that stays at the Port beyond the requested
time frame without submitting a schedule change on a

timely manner nor receiving the approval from the Port

Administrator for a Docking Permit or a request for

dockage time extension will be chazged by the Port

Administrator with a penalty of5000 per each hour or

fraction of hour overdue Vessels with an overdue
schedule which provoke other Vessels business

interruption will also be responsible for the compensation
of any costs incurred loss or damages claimed to the Port

Administrator andor the Mayagiiez Port Commission by
any vessel because its departure or entrance is delayed by
the overdue schedule vessel
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39 First based on information and belief and the experience of operating in

several Ports in the Caribbean there is no similaz penalty in any other jurisdiction In

fact PRPAsTariff M16 Rule 64 provides for twice the dockage charges per day or

fraction when a vessel uses a facility without authorization Applying PRPAsRule 64

to the MV CARIBBEAN EXPRESS the daily penalty would be285134 instead of

paying the straight docking chazge of142567 In contrast the penalty under the Port

CommissionsRule 83 would be 12000000 per day Cleazly Rule 83 is unjust and

unreasonable and is not rationally related to any marine terminal services or benefits

40 Moreover Tariff 83 is vague as it does not define what is in timely

manner to submit a schedule change It is also vague and unjust in that if the vessel

does not receive approval from the Port Administrator it will be charged500000 per

hour or fraction

41 Rule 83 must also be read in connection with Rate 1675 which

provides

1675Docking Penalty

Penalty is applicable to any unauthorized delay time
which intemipts the entrance or exit to the Port to

other Vessels

5000hour and or fraction plus the reimbursement to

the Vessel affected for the business interruption in the

amount norsic exceed to5000

42 Rate 1675appeazs to piggyback on Rule 83 meaning apenalty for delay

of5000 per hour will apply plus a second penalty of5000 per hour when the time

delay interrupts the entrance or exitof other vessels Moreover Rate 1675 adjudicates a

claim without due process of law in providing for the reimbursement to the Vessel
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affected for the business interruption in an amount not to exceed500000 In other

words a triple penalty

ii Rules 137and9114and Rate 1629

43 Rules 137 and 9114and Rate 1629are patently discriminatory as it

targets the Complainants They provide as follows

137PBC

Initials for Passenger Baggage Cazgo used to refer to

the General Cazgo Container units used to transport
such baggage boxes and any type of cazgo when a

passenger is traveling in the same Vessel that such
PBC For the purpose of this tariff three different
measuresof PBC aze applicable to Wharfage

PBC 20

PBC 40

PBC 45

9114

Whenever the Vessel carrier of passenger transports
baggage either as part of the passenger ticket cost

andor based on a baggage tariff applicable to pieces
either by measures andor by weight the Port
Administrator shall assess a fixed chazge per PBC

type unit reported in the Vessel Manifest as per
Section 1629 even if the PBCs is partially or fully
loaded

91141

The Vessel Owner or Vessel Agent shall report all
inbound and outbound PBC as part of the Vessel

Manifest including such PBC used for noncharged
baggage

91142

The Port Administrator shall apply a credit of 20
over the total PBC tariff invoice This credit provides
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the method to compensate the Vessel Owner or

Vessel Agent for Section923

1629

Passenger Baggage Containers A 20 credit is

applicable over total amount

16291PBC 20 12500

16292PBC 40 20000

16293PBC 45 22500

44 Because of the nature of the operation the baggage that passengers will

not use during the overnight transit between Dominican Republic and Puerto Rico and

viceversa aze placed inside a container for safekeeping Upon disembazkation the

container is taken ashore and opened to deliver the baggage to the passengers On

infotmation and belief and based on the experience of operating the MV CARIBBEAN

EXPRESS and similaz type vessels for over 14 yeazs no other vessel in the Port of

Mayagiiez or any other port in Puerto Rico operates in similaz fashion PRPAsTariff

M16does not have similar chazge Therefore this chazge is unjust and discriminatory

as it is only applies to Complainants and is not rationally related to any marine terminal

services or benefits

iii Unwarranted 800 increase in rental charges under Rule 150

Tariff No O1 Rule 150provides in pertinent part that

The precise rental rate applicable to a particulaz pazcel of
such land will depend at each facility at which land is
available on assessment of land values and taking into

consideration its location in relation to the waterfront the
service high ways the existing utilities and similaz factors
which have direct bearing on rental value
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In accordance with the Port of Mayagiiez policy rental

agreements involving land at the Port ofMayagiiez Marine

Terminals will provide for the reestablishment of the
rental rate by the Port Administrator Holland Group
without limitation

45 The Mayagiiez Port Commission however has not published the rates that

are applicable to land and terminal space rentaL Therefore the rental rates aze at the

whim of Holland Group without limitation In contrast PRPA published such rates as

follows

a Office area 500 per square feet per year

b Wazehouse azea250 per squaze feet per year

c Open space Exclusive area2500000 per cuerda per yeaz and

d SpacePreferential area 25per squaze foot per yeaz

In addition the Port ofPonce published such rates as follows

aOffice azea3001500per square feet per yeaz

b Wazehouse area225per squaze feet per yeaz

c Land per cuerda per yeaz

Improved780010000
Unimproved20007799

d SpacePreferential area OS per squaze foot per yeaz

46 On September 9 2008 Holland Group with the privity of the Port

Commission unjustifiably and without prior notification unilaterally increased the rent

payment by over 800 plus 30 of all utility expenses of the Terminal retroactive to

September 1 2008 The monthly rent increased from911882 based on the current

PRPAsM16Tariff and rental rates for the Port of San Juan to6659773 plus 30of

all utilities The per cuerda chazge under PRPAs rates is 2500000 under Holland
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Groups is calculated at 304920 Respondents had collected with no objections the

911882 rent payments as established by the PRPA for two and a half yeaz after the

wrongful terminal of the PRPA lease agreement and the enactment of their tariff

Holland Group did not provide any reasonable or rational basis for this unjustifiable

increase

47 Complainants notified their vritten objections to the unreasonable increase

in rent to both the Port Commission and Holland Group on September 10 and 11 2008

and other subsequent dates Complainants also addressed the Holland Groupspractice

of not answering Complainants communications regarding the lease agreement

negotiations for over ayear

48 Respondents did not attempt to negotiate this rental increase with

Complainants before its implementation This arbitrary and unreasonable imposition of

an 833 rental increase is a direct violation of Act 10 which mandates that the Port

Commission hold public hearings to determine fix alter chazge and collect reasonable

rates fees rentals and other charges for the use of the facilities or setvices of the Port

Commission 23LPRA5551 In addition this rental increase directly violates

Respondents own tariff Because the rental increase was of 833 apublic hearing must

have been held before such rate was imposed however no such public hearing was ever

held Second contrary to 150 of Tariff No 1 Respondents never provided

Complainants with an assessment of the value of the said property in order to impose the

precise rental rate applicable to a particulaz pazcel of such land Handbook and Tariff

No Ol 150
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49 Failure to hold these public hearings before determining and charging an

increase in rent is prima facie evidence that the Respondents unreasonably refused to

negotiate failed to establish observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and

practices relating to or connected with receiving handling storing or delivering

property and imposed unreasonable prejudice and disadvantage with respect to the

Complaints Further evidence that the increase of rent is unreasonable is that the increase

in rental came with absolutely no increase or change in services provided by the

respondents

e Holland Group threatens to close the terminal and attempts
to extort50000000

50 On October 1 and 2 2008 Holland Group unjustifiably threatened to close

the Mayagiiez Terminal and notified the Complainants that

a Holland Group would no longer accept the rent payment from the
Complainants

b It voided and returned the check in payment of the rent for the
month of October 2008

c Holland Group and the Port Commission had previously rejected
the PRPA Lease Agreement

d Marine Express and Ferries del Caribe were immediately to vacate

the office and maintenance shop spaces both essential for

passenger and cargo operations

e The air conditioning system would be shutoffin the Terminal

building

f The US Immigratiotis and Customs office would have to pay rent
or be vacated and

g Allnonessential services related to cazgo operations would be
discontinued
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51 On October 2 2008 the Complainants met with representatives of the Port

Commission and the Holland Group Without any evidence to support its position

Holland Group in an attempt to extort the Complainants requested 60000000 ayeaz to

be paid in any manner

52 The President of Holland Group stated that if the 60000000 would not

be paid as increased rent then a300fee would be imposed on each passenger

embazking or disembarking the vessel Holland Group also stated that this fee which

was only applicable to Complainants passengers was outside the Port of Mayagiiez

Tariff No O1 and would be physically collected asaCustoms Access Fee from a desk

before allowing the passengers to continue to the US Customs check point In other

words if a passenger were not to pay the Customs Access Fee the passenger would not

be allowed to proceed to the US Customs checkpoint This amounts to an illegal

restriction of the passengers fundamental right to travel as well as an unreasonable

regulation or practice in violation of 46USC 41102 c and 41106 because it is not

rationally related to any marine terminal services or benefits provided

53 Complainants on October 8 2008 objected again to the Port Commission

about Holland Groups irrational actions It also wamed the Port Commission that the

Complainants were forced out of the Mayagiiez Port Terminal including the preferential

azea

f Holland Group retaliates by imposing other unwarranted fees and

charges in the amount of11291764

54 During the October 2 2008 meeting the President of Holland Group

threatened that if the 600000 were not paid Respondents would start to retaliate against
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the Complainants Because Complainants refused to pay the 600000 without first

receiving a rational explanation for the charge and in breach of the Port of Mayagiiez

Tariff No Ol respondent Holland Group notified to Complainants several invoices Nos

03570358040140304050409041104130415041904200422042504280430

0434 0437438 04420445 0448 and 04520453 for the collection of container

demurrage imposition of penalty for equipment left at the pier without authorization and

interest penalty for late payment totaling 11291764

55 Because the rent was paid and collected for the month of September 2008

the containers parked in the preferential azea that had been leased to the Complainants

were on free time for the first six days of October 2008 Therefore demurrage charges

for this period aze invalid

56 The container demurrage invoices aze also invalid because they do not

provide the inventory identifying the containers allegedly found in demurrage as is the

standazd in the industry

57 Holland Group also seeks to penalize the Complainants under rate

16631ofTariff No O1 which provides that

Vessels Owners or Vessel Agents will in addition be held

responsible fro sic violations to any of the Port of

Mayaguez resolution or regulation conceming equipment
left at the Pier without the wrresponding authorization

The penalty rate is2856per unit per day Because the Port Commission has not

promulgated any resolution or regulation conceming equipment left at the Pier without

authorization such penalty is not applicable Moreover this rate is asubsection of rate

1663that applies specifically to cranes and specialized equipment and not to containers

platforms or any other such equipment at the pier with authorization In other words if
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the container is in demurrage then the demurrage rate applies and not rate 1663

Finally the 16631 charges aze unsupported in that they do not provide the inventory

identifying the cranes or specialized equipment allegedly left at the Pier without

authorization

58 Holland Group also arbitrarily imposed a penalty of9 daily interest rate

on outstanding balance allegedly under Rate 16713 Invoices 402 and 403 for

delinquent accounts not paying Invoices Nos 357358 in 24 hours First the interest

rate under rate 16713is9annual interest over delinquent balance Furthermore as

described in paragraphs 5457 above the invoices for demurrage and penalty for

unauthorized specialized equipment on the pier aze retaliatory contrary to the Port of

Mayagiiez Tariff No Ol and invalid Therefore an interest penalty for the nonpayment

of invalid invoices is likewise invalid

59 On October 10 and 20 2008 the Complainants objected to Holland Group

about the unreasonable practices and invoices On October 21 2008 the Complainants

likewise notified their objections to the Port Commission regazding Holland Groups

unjust actions

60 By imposing these chazges Respondents as marine terminal operators

failed to establish observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and practices

relating to or connected with receiving handling storing or delivering property and

unreasonably discriminate prejudice and place the Complaints at adisadvantage

g Holland Group unjustiably closed Area Gate 5 of the Terminal
impeding cargo operations

61 In retaliation Holland Group closed the Gate 5 Area ofthe Terminal on

October 23 2008 impeding Complainants from conducting cargo operations This is a
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violation of Section 63 of the Lease and Development Ageement between the Port

Commission and Holland Group which provides fora35OOOl10 per business day for

disruption closure or interruption of the hisyaguez Port if caused by the negligence of

Holland Group This is also a violation of the Shipping Act because it is a failure to

establish observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and practices relating to or

connected with receiving handling storing or delivering property and imposed

unreasonable prejudice and disadvantage with respect to the Complainants

62 Meanwhile Holland Group continued to send invoices chazging for

demurrage and the penalty for leaving specialized equipment on the pier even for

October 23 2008 when Holland Group ocked out the Complainants from the Terminal

63 According to Holland Group because the Complainants were delinquent

in payment of the invoices Complainants did not have credit and were put on a cash pre

payment basis These was so even though Complainants have a stellar credit record and

were on the 5 incentive progam for early payment until Holland Group arbitrarily

terminated the incentive as to the Complainants

64 On October 24 2008 Holland Group restricted the removal of the

containers from the Terminal on aonebyone basis subject toprepayment of demurrage

charges that Holland Group randomly and arbitrarily imposed upon the containers

65 Because of the unreasonable closing of the cazgo operation azea by

Holland Group and to avoid further interruptions to their operations and the continuous

imposition of unreasonable chazges the Complainants had no other option but to remove

all the containers and equipment from the Mayagiiez Terminal and pazk them on the
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public streets parking spaces and private parcels of land outside ofthe Mayagiiez Port at

great costs expenses and risk

66 Only after receiving the October and November rental invoices did the

Complainants know that they had been evicted from the preferential area which amounts

to two 2 cuerdas of the Port Terminal The Respondents have never articulated a

rational reason nor negotiated the eviction of said pazcel of land

h Holland Group unjustifiably required all charges be prepaid and

over charges for docking

67 Holland Group also required the prepayment of charges related to the

docking of the MVCARIBBEAN EXPRESS in the amount of600000 an overchazge

of over 40000 per docking operation If not paid as requested Holland Group has

threatened to deny docking to the MVCARIBBEAN EXPRESS

68 Because no other port in Puerto Rico can accommodate the MV

CARIBBEAN EXPRESS with its Mediterranean mooring system without taking

exceptional measures and at great costs and expenses and on aonetime shot basis the

Complainants have formally notified the US Coast Guazd San Juan Sector and US

Customs of the threats of possible denial ofdockage at the Port of Mayagiiez

69 After filing Complainants Verified Complaint with the FMC Respondents

subsequently raised the amount of prepannent of docking charges from an already

overpayment of 600000 to750000 Furthermore Respondents sent an invoice to

Complainants in the amount of 102000 for yazd cleaning which it had never done

before

In their attempts to get solutions to the heavyhanded and egregious treatment on

October 28 2008 the Complainants submitted a formal complaint with the Mayagiiez
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Port Commission regazding Holland Groups egregious breach of the Mayagiiez Port

Tariff No Ol requesting

a The imposition of2500000 penalty per occurrence as provided
for Section 38of the Lease and Development Agreement between

the Mayagiiez Port Commission and Holland Group

b That all unreasonable chazges be declared null and void

c That the practice of requesting prepayment for services be declazed

null and void and

d The imposition ofany other penalty or condition that the Port

Commission may deem proper

i Untcondition ofMayagdez Terminal

70 In violation of46USC 41102c the Mayagiiez Terminal is lacking in

maintenance and repair The container operation area lacks pavement and is full of holes

Part of the Pier apron on which the passengers and their vehicles transit on or off the

Vessel is collapsing Moreover the seawalt lacks fenders or defenses to protect the pier

structure and the vessel during berthing maneuvers

71 Because of Holland Groups inaction in coaecting these obvious

deficiencies on October 31 2008 the Complainants filed a formal complaint with the

Port Commission

V Violations of the Shipping Act of1984

As a direct result of the Mayaguez Port Commissions and Holland Groups

violations of the Shipping Act of 1984 Complainants have suffered and will continue to

sufer substantial economic damages and injury including the cancellation of financial

facilities of over2400000000 because the lack of a longterm lease agreement at the

Mayagiiez Port which aze valued at notlss than2500000000 The actions of the
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Mayagiiez Port Commission and the Holland Group constitute violations of the Shipping

Act of 1984 including unjust unreasonable and unlawful practices in violation of 46

USC 41102 c and unreasonable refusals to negotiate unreasonable discrimination

and undue or unreasonable prejudice or disadvantages in violation of 46USC 41106

13 Such violations by the Mayagiiez Port Commission and the Holland Group

include but are not limited to

l Unreasonably terminating the Mayagiiez Terminal Lease Ageement

2 The Port Commission and Holland Group unreasonably and

unjustifiably refusing to negotiate with Complainants alongterm lease

agreement

3 The Port Commission and Holland Group acting with undue prejudice
to force the Complainants to vacate the Mayagiiez Port Terminal

4 The Port Commission and Holland Crroup unreasonably failed to

establish observe and enforce just and reasonable regulations and

practice

5 Tariff No 1 Rule 83 and Rate 1675 aze unreasonable unjust and

vague

6 Tariff No 1 Rules 137 and 9114and Rate 1629 are patently
discriminatory

7 Holland Group unreasonably and unjustifiably increasing the rental

rates by 833

8 Holland Group unreasoiably and unjustifiably attempting to extort

60000000 from the Complainants

9 Holland Group unjustifiably unreasonably and with undue prejudice
threatening to close the Mayagiiez Terminal to the Complainants

10 Holland Group unreasonably threatened to imposea300fee on each

passenger outside the applicable tariffs asaCustoms Access Fee

before allowing the passengers to continue to the US Customs

checkpoint
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11 Holland Group unjustifiably and unreasonably imposing unwarranted

fees and chazges in the amount of11291764

12 Holland Group unjustifiably and unreasonably and with undue

prejudice closing Area Gate 5 of the Terminal impeding cazgo

operations

13 Holland Group unjustifiably and unreasonably and with undue

prejudice evicted the Complainants from two cuerdas of the Terminal

Area

14 Holland Group unjustifiably unreasonably and with undue prejudice
requiring that all chazges be prepaid and overchazging for docking

15 Holland Group unjustifiably and unreasonably refusing to maintain

and repair the Mayagiiez Terminal Area

16 The Port Commission unreasonably failing to observe reasonable

practice and not ordering the Holland Group to comply with the

Tariffs No 1 and the Lease and Development Agreement

VI Prayer For Relief

Wherefore Complainants respectfully request from this Honorable Commission

that the Mayagiiez Port Commission and the Holland Group be required to answer the

chazges and that after due investigation and hearing both Respondents and each of them

be ordered to

i Cease and desist from the above described violations of the Shipping
Act of 1984

ii Establish and put in force such practices as this Honorable

Commission determines to be lawful and reasonable

iii Pay to the Complainants by way of repazations for the unlawful

conduct described above a sum of no less than25000000including
attomeys fees interests and costs

iv Pay any other damages that may be determined proper and

v Take any other such action or provide any other such relief as this

Honorable Commission determines to be warranted under the

circumstances
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VII Place of Hearing

The Complainants desire the Hearing to be held in San Juan Puerto Rico

VIII Alternate Dispute Resolution

The Commissions informal dispute resolution procedures have not been used

prior to the filing of this Complaint Counsel for the Complainants has had preliminary

consultations with the Commissions Dispute Resolution Specialist regarding the

availability of altemative dispute resolution ADR under the Commissions ADR

program 46 CFR 50262E

Respectfully submitted

JIMENEZ GRAFFAM LAUSELL

By
rge F Blasini

PO Box 366104

San Juan Puerto Rico 009366104

Tel 787 7671030

Fax7877514068
email jblasiniajlgcom

Counsel for Western Holding Group Inc

Marine Express Inc Corporation Femes

Del Caribe Inc

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 15h day of January 2009 a copy of the foregoing was

served by certified mail retum receipt upon Respondents Mayagiiez Port

Commission 80PR3341 Suite 102 Mayaguez Puerto Rico 006825769 Edward

Hill Tolinche Esq PO Box 71405 San Juan Puerto Rico 009368505 and to Eliot

J Halperin Esq and Deana E Rose Esq Manelli Denison Selter PLLC Suite

700 2000 M Street NWWashington DC 20036

Jorge F Blasini



VERIFICATION

I Maribel Mas Rivera of legal age single executive and resident ofMayagiiez

Puerto Rico do dectaze under penalty of perjury that I have read the foregoing

Amended Verified Complaint and believed the facts stated therein to be true and correct

I am the VicePresident of Western Holding Group Inc Marine Express Inc and

Corporacion Ferries del Caribe Inc

InMayagiiez Puerto Rico this 15 of January 2009


